
 

 

Page 1 of 8 
 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Minutes of the Governing Board 

Regular Meeting 

August 27, 2025 

Temple University Harrisburg, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg PA 

hbgica.org 

Members in Attendance Mr. Doug Hill, Chair 
Ms. Kathy Speaker MacNett 
Ms. Elaine Barber 

A Quorum Was Recognized 

Ex-Officio Members in Attendance Mr. Bryan McCutcheon, 

City of Harrisburg 

 

In Attendance Mr. Jeffrey Stonehill, 
Authority Manager 

 

Meeting Begins   3:00 p.m. 

Welcome by Doug Hill, Chair Mr. Hill opened the meeting.  

Approval of the Minutes 
● June 25, 2025 

On a motion by Ms. MacNett, Second by 
Ms. Barber, the minutes were approved. 

The minutes were 
approved by a vote of 3-0. 

Report by the Chair Mr. Hill informed the assembled that he 

had not had an opportunity to meet with 
the Mayor about the ICA, but he has seen 

her on other projects. He has been asked 

to sit on the panel for housing program 
improvements using the American 
Rescue Program Act funding. 

 
Mr. Hill reviewed the process for the 

creation of a comprehensive economic 
development plan with partners include 

CREDC. 
 
Mr. Hill noted a meeting held by PennLive 

to review community stakeholder 
opinions on economic development. 

Generally, he believed that there were 
some interesting comments made during 

this public meeting, and while the 
Lancaster comparison was not entirely 

accurate, Mr. Hill agreed that the citizens 

should be the driver of the plan; and 
second, community involvement should 
include the community’s thought-leaders 
and entrepreneurs. Finally, the synergy of 

 



 

 

Page 2 of 8 
 

different neighborhoods was an 
important point made at the meeting. 

 

Mr. Stonehill asked about the economic 
development project in Pittsburgh, but 
he wondered if the Pittsburgh project 
was more-downtown-centric. Mr. Hill 
said there was a downtown market plan 

but also a regional plan. Mr. Hill noted 

the difference in Harrisburg 
neighborhoods. 
 
Ms. MacNett liked the consultant 

comment at the meeting that no one 

comes downtown just to park. That 

parking was ancillary to downtown 

destinations. She also talked about the 
Uptown Shopping Center. She also noted 

the old high school. 
 
Mr. Hill said that CREDC is seeking an 

economic development consultant, and 

the stakeholders will develop a core work 

group and a set of other work groups. 
There is a lot of interest in a project-

focused basis. He also noted the issue of 
residential conversions. The community 

is too focused on Commonwealth 

employees. 

 
The ICA Board has discussed $50,000 in 
bridge funding to help launch the project 

while awaiting Commonwealth funding. 
The General Counsel is doing a legal 

review of that concept.  

 
Ms. MacNett noted that Strawberry 

Square is acting as a small business 
incubator. Interested stakeholders will be 
referred to CREDC. If they establish a 

webpage, the ICA can link to it. 

Harrisburg City Controller Mr. Hill introduced Mr. Charles 
DeBrunner, City of Harrisburg Controller, 
who is in the process of completing his 
elected term of office and will be 

stepping away from public service at the 

end of the year. He was joined by his 

 



 

 

Page 3 of 8 
 

deputy, Michael Thomas. Mr. Hill 
thanked them for their service. 

 

Mr. DeBrunner talked about those things 
that have changed over his tenure. He 
started with his view of the parking plan 
and the sale of City assets. He reviewed 
the City’s municipal debt situation and 

the payoff of the Ambac debt. He noted 

the importance of the extension of the 
extraordinary taxing authority granted by 
the State. He gave his opinion of property 
tax system. 

 

In his opinion, the finances of the City are 

now as solid as they have been in years. 

Mr. DeBrunner compared the difference 
in financial management between when 

they arrived and now. 
 
Mr. DeBrunner noted the benefit of 

having no pension liability, no debt, and 

positive cash flow. He hopes that the City 

continues to live within its means. 
 

Ms. MacNett asked about the OPEB 
Trust. Mr. DeBrunner said we should be 

worried about other post-employment 

benefits debt and the lack of establishing 

any plan to address this liability. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about the lack of the 

City having any credit worthiness. Mr. 
DeBrunner said it would be good for the 

City to establish the ability to borrow, if 

the City were forced to borrow. 
Someday, he explained, there will be a 

project that is so compelling.  However, 
he does not like debt and the City is 
managing well without the ability to 

borrow. 
 

Mr. Hill asked about other revenue 
issues. Mr. DeBrunner said City revenue 
is just about flat. He does not think that 
residents of the City could afford to 
contribute more revenue to City 



 

 

Page 4 of 8 
 

operations. He said that the State 
government has abandoned its 

responsibility to the City. He discussed 

the future of office and commercial real 
estate and residential conversions. 
 
He said State government is no longer 
the business of this town. 

 

Mr. Hill noted that the ICA Board is 
watching City reserves and the reduction 
in assessed value of real property. 
 

Mr. Stonehill said the partnership 

between the ICA Board and the 

Controller’s Office has been very 

successful. Mr. DeBrunner said it has 
been an honor to help. 

 
Mr. Hill thanked Mr. DeBrunner and 
offered his best wishes for Mr. 

DeBrunner’s future. 

Report on City of Harrisburg 
Financial Activities 

Mr. Hill introduced Bryan McCutcheon, 
Accounting Manager. There was a 

handout of draft 2026 numbers for the 

upcoming Five-Year Plan. 
 

He reviewed the following information: 

● The proposed Executive 
Summary. 

● The special funds of the City, 
which are seven minor funds; like 
the Special Events Fund. 

● The Capital Fund, Host Fund, and 
the grant money fund for 2026 

and beyond. The Host Fund is the 
money from the incinerator. 

● The Liquid Fuels grant fund. 
● The Broad Street Market impact 

on the 2026 budget.  

● The Neighborhood Services Fund. 
Mr. McCutcheon reviewed the 
projections for the future. He 
noted the Brenner Motors 
Litigation settlement and its 

impact. The hope is that the City 

 
 



 

 

Page 5 of 8 
 

gets better at collection of past 
due balances. 

● Mr. McCutcheon noted that the 

Five-Year Plan makes a good tool. 
● Ms. Barber asked about 

collections in the Neighborhood 
Services Fund. Business 
Administrator, Sam Sulkosky gave 

his impressions on collections. 

Mr. Stonehill gave his opinion on 
outstanding trash bills. 

● Mr. McCutcheon noted the 
outstanding AFSCME union 

contract. 

● Mr. McCutcheon reviewed the 

Harrisburg Senator’s Fund and 

the FNB Field upgrades. The City 
is contributing $6 million and 

there will be a $6 million 
reimbursement from a RCAP 
grant. The project is a little over 

budget at about $12.2 million. 

● Mr. McCutcheon reviewed an 

analysis and projection of the 
General Fund. 

● Mr. McCutcheon noted the 
outstanding Police union 

contract. 

● Mr. McCutcheon noted the only 

debt is the pass-through for the 
Commonwealth Verizon Tower. 
The City is the guarantor.  

● There is about 18-months left on 
the reconstruction of the Broad 

Street Market. The estimate is 

$19 million. Mr. McCutcheon 
went over a variety of other 

projects. 
● Mr. McCutcheon reviewed the 

summary tables that will appear 

in the 2026 Five-Year Plan. 
● The Commonwealth Capital Fire 

Protection contribution may rise 
next year; perhaps $7 million. 

● A “premature” look seems to 
imply that the City will stay 



Page 6 of 8 

within its means for the five 
years. 

● Mr. McCutcheon said a number

of narrative items still need work.

The final submission of a proposed 2026 
Five-Year Plan should be submitted to the 
ICA Board for review on time, but maybe 

on Saturday August 30th. 

Mr. Hill thanked Mr. McCutcheon for the 
level of work and level of detail. 
Individual members of the ICA Board will 

review the draft. We will prepare for a 

discussion at the meeting on September 

24th. 

Authority Manager’s Report Mr. Stonehill provided the financial 

report for August 2025. 

Update on Appointments Mr. Hill noted the recent appointment of 

Kevin Hancock to take the seat being 

vacated by Elaine Barber. He thanked 

Elaine for her service to the ICA and the 

City. She said a few kind words. Mr. Hill 

noted there are two other nominees in 

the work for the two open positions. 

Other Business None. 

Public Comments There were no public comments. 

Adjourn meeting at 4:45 p.m. Motion by Ms. Barber. 

A second was not required. 

Approved 3-0. 

Respectfully submitted: 

--------------------------------- 

Jeffrey M. Stonehill, Authority Manager 



Page 7 of 8 



 

 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Appendix Documents 





Summary of Bills Paid – Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

 

Report – July 1, 2025 to August 27, 2025 

 

Starting balance (July 1):   $183,266.39 

 

7/1/25 Johnson Duffie Legal Expenses (Apr & May) $1,085.00 

7/1/25 Pursuit Co-Working Harrisburg $98.15 

7/1/25 Digital Ocean $12.72 

7/1/25 Digital Ocean $6.87 

7/25/25 Westfield Insurance $500.00 

7/31/25 Monthly Interest on Checking Account +$1.55 

8/1/25 Digital Ocean $12.72 

8/1/25 Digital Ocean $6.87 

8/1/25 Pursuit Co-Working Harrisburg $98.15 

8/23/25 PA Media Group (August Ad) $172.74 

8/27/25 Johnson Duffie Legal Expenses (June) $1,225.00 

8/27/25 MESH PA 2 (September 2025) $5,250.00 

  

Estimated Balance (August 27, 2025)   $174,801.72 


















